Cherwell District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 31 May 2016 at 6.30 pm

Present: Councillor Jolanta Lis (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair)

Councillor Chris Heath
Councillor David Anderson
Councillor Mike Bishop
Councillor Hugo Brown
Councillor Mark Cherry
Councillor Nicholas Mawer
Councillor Sandra Rhodes
Councillor Jason Slaymaker
Councillor Bryn Williams

Substitute Councillor Andrew Beere (In place of Councillor Claire Bell)

Members:

Also Councillor Barry Wood, Leader of the Council

Present:

Apologies Councillor Neil Prestidge for Councillor Claire Bell

absence:

Officers: Edward Bailey, Corporate Performance Manager

Louise Tustian2, Acting Corporate Performance and Insight

Manager

James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager

Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections

Emma Faulkner, Democratic and Elections Officer

3 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

5 Minutes

The Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 5 April and 17 May 2016 were confirmed as correct records and signed by the Chairman.

6 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

7 Scrutiny Briefing

The Chairman welcomed the Democratic and Elections Manager, who gave a short presentation on how the Overview and Scrutiny function would work, and gave guidance on how the Committee could decide which areas to focus on.

The Democratic and Elections Manager also clarified the role of Executive Members in the Scrutiny process. Although it wasn't possible for an Executive Member to be a member of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee, it didn't mean that they couldn't attend meetings or be asked questions during a scrutiny investigation.

The Democratic and Elections Manager added that historically the Committee had a very good working relationship with the Executive, and most recommendations made to Executive in the past as a result of Overview and Scrutiny reviews had been accepted.

In response to questions from the Committee, the Democratic and Elections Manager advised that areas of responsibility of other authorities such as County Council or Highways Authority could still be looked at, as joint scrutiny was an option.

The Committee thanked the Democratic and Elections officer for his briefing.

Performance Management Framework 2015/16 Quarter 4/Year End Report

The Committee considered a report from the Head of Transformation that detailed performance monitoring for Quarter 4 of 2015-2016, and the end of year report.

In response to questions from the Committee, the Corporate Performance Manager and the Senior Performance and Improvement Officer agreed to circulate a link to the Council's business plan to the Committee.

In connection with indicators CBP2 2.1b and 2.1c, recorded fly tips and number of fly tip enforcement actions, the Committee noted the scheduled consideration of a fly tipping report by Executive at its September meeting, and requested that the relevant officers be invited to a future meeting of the Committee prior to the report being submitted to Executive. Officers also agreed to circulate details of the recently appointed enforcement officer, as well as feedback on the number of prosecutions.

The Committee noted that work on redeveloping the website (pledge CBP4 2.2) had been put on hold whilst the future of working with Stratford was

discussed. They requested that the item be kept on the work programme to enable a further update in the future.

With regard to indicator CBP4 4.3, develop a car parking strategy, the Committee noted the scheduled consideration of the item at the September meeting of Executive, and requested that it be added to the work programme for the Committee ahead of the Executive meeting.

The Committee also requested that when partnerships or working groups were referred to in the report, a brief definition be included to remind people what each one does.

In connection with indicator CBP3 8.2, "Rural Proof" significant new policies, officers agreed to circulate a definition of "Rural Proof".

With regard to the format of future performance reports, the Corporate Performance Manager demonstrated two possible options. The first was an online based 'dashboard' approach, which would provide key headlines and statistics at a glance. The second was a website based on the business plan, which would link from the main Council website and give the option of summary information, or more detailed statistics behind the headlines if users so wished.

The Corporate Performance Manager advised that links to both options would be circulated to the Committee before the next meeting the team were due to attend, and feedback would be invited ahead of consideration by the Executive.

Resolved

- (1) That the report be noted
- (2) That the red performance of flytipping be noted from the performance monitoring, as well as the scheduling of a report to Executive in September and the item be added to the Committee work programme to consider the report prior to its submission to Executive
- (3) That the development of a parking strategy be noted from the performance monitoring, as well as the scheduling of a report to future meeting of Executive and the item be added to the Committee work programme to consider the report prior to its submission to Executive

9 Committee Work Programme

The Committee considered the work programme for the Municipal Year.

With regard to the on-going Youth Engagement Review, the Committee agreed to defer consideration of the item to the next meeting of the Committee in July.

Following consideration of end of year performance at item 7 on the agenda, it was agreed that reports relating to flytipping and creation of a parking strategy

from the Executive work programme should be considered by Overview and Scrutiny prior to their consideration by Executive.

In response to concerns raised by the Committee, a working group was established comprising of Councillors Brown, Bishop, Heath and Williams to draft a scoping document relating to the A361 through the district, for consideration by the Committee ahead of a possible Scrutiny review.

The Committee also expressed an interest in updates relating to the redevelopment of the Council website, and the possible introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

The Committee Chairman had requested that consideration be given to the start time of future meetings being changed to 6:45pm, due to his work commitments. The Committee agreed to the change, with effect from the next meeting.

Officers also requested that the meeting of the Committee scheduled for Tuesday 6 September 2016 be brought forward to Thursday 1 September. This would allow the Committee to consider the Quarter 1 performance figures and make any comments to Executive, ahead of their consideration of the item at the meeting on Monday 5 September.

Resolved

- (1) That consideration of the continuation of the Youth Engagement Review be deferred to the July meeting of the Committee.
- (2) That, as per the resolution from item 7 (Performance Monitoring), reports relating to flytipping and the creation of a parking strategy from the Executive Work Programme be considered by Overview and Scrutiny prior to consideration by Executive.
- (3) That a working group be established comprising of Councillors Brown, Bishop, Heath and Williams to draft a scoping document relating to the A361.
- (4) That updates relating to the Cherwell District Council Website redevelopment and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) be added to the work programme.
- (5) That the start time of future meetings be changed to 6:45pm.
- (6) That the September meeting of the Committee be moved from Tuesday 6 September to Thursday 1 September at 6:45pm, to enable the Committee to consider Quarter 1 Performance ahead of its submission to Executive.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 31 May 2016
Chairman:

Date: